### MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE REGULATORY SERVICES COMMITTEE Havering Town Hall, Main Road, Romford 28 April 2016 (7.30 - 8.45 pm)

Present:

**COUNCILLORS:** 11

Robby Misir (in the Chair) Melvin Wallace (Vice-Chair), **Conservative Group** 

Ray Best, Steven Kelly and +Joshua Chapman

Residents' Group Stephanie Nunn and Reg Whitney

**East Havering Residents' Group**  Alex Donald and +Linda Van den Hende

**UKIP Group** Phil Martin

Independent Residents

Graham Williamson

Group

Apologies were received for the absence of Councillors Philippa Crowder and Linda Hawthorn.

+Substitute members: Councillor Joshua Chapman (for Philippa Crowder) and Councillor Linda Van den Hende (for Linda Hawthorn).

Councillor Frederick Thompson was also present for part of the meeting.

20 members of the public and a representative of the Press were present.

Unless otherwise indicated all decisions were agreed with no vote against.

Through the Chairman, announcements were made regarding emergency evacuation arrangements and the decision making process followed by the Committee.

#### 441 **MINUTES**

The minutes of the meetings held on 10 March and 31 March 2016 were agreed as correct records and signed by the Chairman.

### 442 P0242.16 - ROMFORD BREWERY SHOPPING CENTRE, ROMFORD

The report before Members was for the installation of a climbing play frame on the approved patio and installation of two customer order displays and associated canopies.

Members noted that the application had been called in by Councillor Frederick Thompson on the grounds that he considered the site to be unsuitable for the children's play equipment as it would be subject to much airborne pollution from vehicular traffic. The site was next to Waterloo Road which was heavily

trafficked and which frequently had extended lines of traffic with idling engines as a result of queuing traffic around the Brewery entrance. Cars picking up food from the drive through facility would add to this. There were no objections to the two information boards.

In accordance with the public speaking arrangements the Committee was addressed by an objector without a response from the applicant.

The objector commented that exposure to harmful emissions would be dangerous to children using the proposed climbing play frame, the objector also commented that climbing frames were usually found in parks and not close to car parks.

With its agreement Councillor Frederick Thompson addressed the Committee.

Cllr Thompson commented that diesel engines contributed to releasing Nitrogen micro-particles that if humans were exposed to over a period of time could cause irreversible lung damage to children. Councillor Thompson also commented that children would be consuming food after playing on the climbing frame that would be exposed to the micro-particles and other airborne bacteria. Councillor Thompson concluded by asking that the Committee refuse the planning application.

During the debate Members discussed the possible pollution problems and the proposal's proximity to the main roads surrounding the site.

Members also sought and received clarification of the robustness and height of the fencing surrounding the site.

It was **RESOLVED** that the granting of planning permission be delegated to the Head of Regulatory Services subject to the applicants providing details of a minimum 1.5m high fencing to the curtilage of the play area. If this was not secured then the application was to come back to the Committee for determination. 443 P0159.16 - HAVENDALE, 58 ORANGE TREE HILL, HAVERING-ATTE-BOWER, ROMFORD - LOFT CONVERSION, SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION AND CONVERSION OF A FRONT BAY WINDOW

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED** that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions as set out in the report.

444 P0208.16 - CITRUS GROVE, ORANGE TREE HILL, HAVERING-ATTE-BOWER, ROMFORD - PROPOSED DOUBLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION AND ALTERATIONS TO THE REAR ELEVATION, RECONFIGURATION OF THE ROOF TO INCLUDE A FRONT DORMER AND REAR FLAT ROOF WITH LANTERN AND RECONFIGURATION OF THE INTERNAL LAYOUT

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED** that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions as set out in the report.

445 P0213.16 - CEME, MARSH WAY, RAINHAM - CHANGE OF USE OF 1,454 SQ.M. OF FLOOR SPACE IN THE WEST WING OF THE MAIN CEME TRAINING AND CONFERENCE CENTRE FROM A D1 USE TO A MIXED D1 AND B1 USE

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED** that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions as set out in the report.

446 P1286.15 - BOWER HOUSE, ORANGE TREE HILL, HAVERING-ATTE-BOWER, ROMFORD - DEMOLITION OF THE EXISTING TWENTIETH CENTURY BUILDINGS AND ERECTION OF A REPLACEMENT TRAINING CENTRE FACILITY WITH ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING TO THE WALLED GARDEN AREA ALONG WITH REFURBISHMENT WORKS TO THE STABLE BLOCK

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED** that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions as set out in the report.

447 L0008.15 - BOWER HOUSE, ORANGE TREE HILL, HAVERING-ATTE-BOWER, ROMFORD - REFURBISHMENT WORKS TO THE STABLE BLOCK, INCLUDING; REMOVAL OF EXTERNAL FIRE ESCAPE STAIR, REMOVAL OF EXTERNALLY MOUNTED AIR CONDITIONING UNITS, REINSTATEMENT OF ORIGINAL WINDOW OPENINGS, REPLACEMENT OF NON-ORIGINAL WINDOWS WITH NEW TIMBER SASH WINDOWS AND INTERNAL MODIFICATIONS.

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED** that Listed Building Consent be granted subject to no contrary direction from the Secretary of State.

448 P1910.15 - FAIRLAWNS, HAVERING-ATTE-BOWER, ROMFORD - THE ERECTION OF A NEW DWELLING HOUSE AND DETACHED CART SHED TO REPLACE THE EXISTING RESIDENTIAL UNIT INCLUDING THE REMOVAL OF A BARN, OUTBUILDINGS AND CARAVAN

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED** that planning permission be granted subject to the conditions as set out in the report with an additional condition preventing any mobile home(s) being stored or placed on the site for whatever purpose.

## 449 P0109.16 - 24 ROSEBANK AVENUE, HORNCHURCH - ERECTION OF A GRANNY ANNEXE IN THE REAR GARDEN

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED** that the application was unacceptable as it stood but would be acceptable subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106 Legal Agreement to secure the following:

- That the residential annexe hereby approved shall be permanently retained as an annexe to the existing dwelling at 24 Rosebank Avenue and shall not be sub-divided or sold off separately from the main dwelling.
- The Developer/Owner pay the Council's reasonable legal costs in association with the preparation of a legal agreement, prior to completion of the agreement, irrespective of whether the legal agreement was completed.
- The Developer/Owner to pay the appropriate planning obligation/s monitoring fee prior to completion of the agreement.

That the Head of Regulatory Services be authorised to enter into a legal agreement to secure the above and upon completion of that agreement, grant planning permission subject to the conditions as set out in the report.

The vote for the resolution to grant planning permission subject to the completion of a legal agreement was carried by 10 votes to 0 with 1 abstention.

Councillor Nunn abstained from voting.

### 450 **P1390.15 - 1-3 STATION ROAD, HAROLD WOOD**

The report before Members detailed an application for the demolition of the existing building and the erection of a new block comprising of three retail units at the ground floor and six two bedroom flats above.

During the debate Members sought and received clarification of the parking arrangements and the access and egress arrangements for the proposed development.

Several Members raised concerns regarding the lack of parking provision that would be made available to the development both in retail and residential use.

Members also discussed the issue of resident parking permits not being issued to future occupiers of the residential units and the possibility of displaced parking taking place in the surrounding area.

The report recommended that planning permission be approved however following a motion to refuse the granting of planning permission which was carried by 9 votes to 2.

It was **RESOLVED** that planning permission be refused on the grounds:

- The proposal would by reason of its overdeveloped scale of development and complete absence of on-site car parking would fail to cater for the reasonable needs of future occupiers and would materially worsen parking conditions and congestion in the locality to the detriment of amenity. This could not be reasonably mitigated by denying parking permits as no CPZ existed.
- The proposal by reason of cramped overdevelopment of site failed to provide amenity space reasonably meeting needs of future residents.
- Failure to provide legal agreement to secure contribution to education.

The vote for the resolution to refuse the granting of planning permission was carried by 9 votes to 2.

Councillors Misir and Chapman voted against the resolution to refuse the granting of planning permission.

# 451 P1020.15 - 57 ROCKINGHAM AVENUE, HORNCHURCH - GARAGE CONVERSION OF A DOUBLE GARAGE WITH AN EXTENSION TO FORM A GRANNY FLAT FOR A FAMILY ON SITE

The Committee considered the report and without debate **RESOLVED** that the application was unacceptable as it stood but would be acceptable subject to applicant entering into a Section 106 Legal Agreement to secure the following:

- That the residential annexe hereby approved shall be permanently retained as an annexe to the existing dwelling at 57 Rockingham Avenue and shall not be sub-divided or sold off separately from the main dwelling.
- The Developer/Owner pay the Council's reasonable legal costs in association with the preparation of a legal agreement, prior to completion of the agreement, irrespective of whether the legal agreement was completed.
- The Developer/Owner to pay the appropriate planning obligation/s monitoring fee prior to completion of the agreement.

That the Head of Regulatory Services be authorised to enter into a legal agreement to secure the above and upon completion of that agreement, grant planning permission subject to the conditions as set out in the report.

The vote for the resolution to grant planning permission subject to the completion of a legal agreement was carried by 10 votes to 0 with 1 abstention.

Councillor Nunn abstained from voting.

Chairman	_